Ashton Keynes Parish Council
Minutes of a meeting held in the Village Hall on Wednesday 13th June 2012


Present: Cllrs I Woods (Chairman), J Hughes, M Seymour, R Thomas, E Tidmarsh and D Wingrove


County Cllr C Soden


Four members of the public



The Chairman welcomed the members of the public, who all came from Milling Close.  They were invited by the Chairman to explain the problems they are currently experiencing; Mrs Thomas read out the list, as follows:
a. People are gathering in the Close who are neither from Milling Close nor the Village.
b. The Police have to be called on a regular basis because of fighting/unsocial behaviour.
c. Motor vehicles are being revved up and making a lot of noise, late at night.

d. The people themselves are making a lot of noise late at night.

e. They are leaving a lot of rubbish in the Close.

f. They are intimidating the residents.

g. The residents’ property value is reducing and it is deterring prospective buyers.

h. Police called meeting last year to discuss the problem, but nothing has improved.

She concluded by asking, “What can we do?“
The Chairman thanked Mrs Thomas for explaining the concerns of the Milling Close residents.  He said it was unfortunate that neither the Police nor the Jephson Housing Association were present, having been invited.  The Chairman advised the residents not to confront the perpetrators.  He said there was a requirement to have a separate meeting, where a plan of action was needed to find a global solution.  Cllr D Wingrove said that before a meeting was called, there was a need to raise a catalogue of incidents, to which the Chairman added the need to obtain the car registration numbers, where appropriate.

The subject was discussed at length by all the members adding their suggestions.  The conclusion was that a meeting should be called as soon as possible to include the Milling Close residents, Jonathan Stiddard – the Wiltshire Council Anti Social Behaviour Officer, the Police Inspector for the Malmesbury Division, Jephson Housing Association and the Parish Council.  Mrs Thomas agreed to drop leaflets into the letterboxes of the Milling Close residents.
The Chairman thanked the members of the public for their input. They then left the meeting.

Cllr R Thomas said that he had three public questions, as follows:
1. Why did Cllr C Soden fail to fully support the Parish Council in its attempt to have Planning Application no. 12/00715/FUL, 4 Kent End, Ashton Keynes refused, when pre-planning advice stated:

“The proposed annexe would not be modest in size with a sitting room/kitchen extending to 5.7 by 6.6 metres (38sq m) large bedroom 5.7 by 6.6 metres (38 sq m), study, bathroom and separate toilet with an internal floorspace of approximately 122sq m and give the appearance of a separate dwelling.  As such, the proposed development which is clearly self contained and would be tantamount to a new dwelling, which could easily be separated off as another planning unit, would be out of keeping with the proportion and scale of the existing dwelling”
The amended plans show no reduction to the proposed floor area.

2. Did Cllr C Soden consult with the applicant or her agent prior to the planning                 meeting on 6th June 2012?

3. Why did Cllr C Soden, knowing the Parish Council Planning Committee has delegated powers, not consult that committee prior to the meeting on 6th June 2012?

Cllr C Soden’s reply to the three questions was af follows:

1.
Cllr C Soden said that she did “call in” the Planning Application even though she had her knuckles wrapped.  She had a long chat with the Wiltshire Council Planning Officer, because the application was clearly going to be permitted and if it went to appeal, they would lose and it would be expensive.  On the subject of the amended plans, Cllr Soden said she could arrange for Cllr Thomas to have a meeting with the Planning Team leader if required.



2.
Cllr C Soden said that she did not meet or know the applicants or agent beforehand.


3.
Cllr C Soden explained the situation and said that she had followed the planning rule book to the letter. 

The Chairman expressed his displeasure that any insinuation that Cllr C Soden had ever done less than her best for the Parishioners of Ashton Keynes should be voiced.  The Chairman also found that Cllr Thomas’ tone with Cllr Soden was somewhat impolite and was moved to remind Cllr Thomas that while vigorous debate is always welcome, it must be carried out in a polite manner.
2012/74
To accept apologies for Absence



Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs M Carter, J Freeth, M Jackson, S Jefferson and A Stefanovic.
2012/75
Declarations of Interest on items on the Agenda



A declaration of interest was submitted by Cllr J Hughes on the Horse and Jockey Planning Application to be discussed under Agenda item 2012/80.
2012/76
To confirm the Minutes of the Council Meetings held on 9th May 2012


The Minutes of the Annual Meeting and the Parish Council meeting, which were both held on 9th May 2012, were approved and signed by the Chairman.  
2012/77
Matters arising from the Minutes
The Clerk said he only had one matter arising, which concerned the rumour that Westlea Housing were intending to build more houses at the bottom end of The Mead.  He said that extensive checking had refuted the rumour and that Westlea Housing had no such intentions.
2012/78
Clerk’s Report


The Clerk gave the following report:  
·  He said that he attended the Community Area Transport Group (CATG) meeting the previous evening and the Group endorsed the submission of three bids to the substantive schemes pot, including the provision of the footpath between the White Hart and Church Walk.  He said the CATG now require the agreement of the Parish Council to provide £5,000 towards the cost of £30 to £40K to do the work.  After a short discussion, Cllr M Seymour proposed the provision of £5,000 towards the cost of the project, which was seconded by Cllr E Tidmarsh and agreed unanimously.
·  The Clerk said the grass in the village that needed cutting by Wiltshire Council had now been cut.  He said he was now attempting to get them to cut their grass every two weeks instead of a month.

·  He read out part of an e-mail from an organisation called Build a Community who are having an inaugural meeting in Newbury Town Hall on the 20th July 2012.
·  He had received a letter and Newsletter from the Bobby Van Trust, who were requesting a donation; he said the Parish Council had donated £50 last year.  The members thought the Council should pass on giving a donation this year.
· He said his last item, as usual, was to ask for their wish list of work for the Local Highway and Streetscene Community Team to undertake this month. He received a number of requests for pot holes to be filled, which he said would be recorded and passed on to Wiltshire Highways Partnership.  
2012/79
Financial Transactions
a. Payments Made by Cheque:

    The Council noted that the following payments had been made by cheque:

· AK Village Hall (May Room Rental)
£      34.00

· Aeshton Services (Grasscutting of Verges)
£    110.00

· Clerk’s Salary (May + back pay)
£    669.36

· Clerk’s Expenses (May)
£      63.61

· CPRE (Subscription)
£      29.00

· County Marquees 
£ 3,082.15

b. Payments Made by Debit Card:


  The Council noted the following payment was made by Debit Card:

· Dabs.com (Printer Ink)
£      86.90

2012/80
Horse and Jockey Planning Application


Cllr J Hughes left the room while this agenda item was discussed

Cllr R Thomas began by saying that this agenda item should not be considered because the “Change of Use” Planning Application had not been received.  The Chairman said although that was the case, the issue could still be discussed.  After a short discussion, the Chairman said the question was whether or not the Council wants the Horse and Jockey maintained as a pub.  A consensus of the opinion of the members was that they do not want the pub removed.  Cllr M Seymour suggested that the village should be asked the same question.  The Clerk was asked to put the question in the Parish Newsletter.











Action: The Clerk


Cllr J Hughes re-entered the room.
2012/81
Committees, Working Groups and Representatives’ Reports
The Chairman invited members to give their reports:





County Cllr C Soden

County Cllr C Soden spoke about the Jubilee events that took place in a large park in Salisbury for the Queen’s visit to the city.  Cllr Soden said that each of the 22 Wiltshire Community Area Boards was given a jousting tent to display their part of Wiltshire.  She said the Malmesbury Area Board exhibited items from Malmesbury museum and photographs of the Cotswold Water Park.  Cllr Soden said there was a display of the work of the “naked gardeners” in the Abbey gardens, which particularly amused the Duke of Edinburgh.  It was unfortunate, Cllr Soden said, that the weather on the day was a mixture of sunshine and rain.
Planning Committee
Cllr R Thomas reported that the Planning Application for the change of use of Wheatleys Barn Farm to become a café had produced a lot of questions.  Cllr Thomas then said the Planning Application at 10 High Road had been approved.

School Governors


Cllr D Wingrove said that a recently received OFSTED report was glowing.


Footpaths Working Group


Cllr M Seymour said that a recent complaint about Footpath 2 had resulted in it being cleaned
2012/82
Water Main Renewal
The Chairman said that the work had finished a month early, but there was some restoration work to be done to the grass verges in and around the village.  He said that Optimise had generously given £100 towards the cost of the Jubilee celebrations and had agreed to continue to contribute to the “Lollipop Lady” until the end of June.
2012/83
The Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Celebrations

The Chairman said that every aspect of the Diamond Jubilee Celebrations had gone well and had contributed towards the overall success of the weekend’s activities.  Financially, he did not think the celebrations had cost the Parish Council very much if anything at all.  Cllr D Wingrove said the Committee should be given a big thank you for all they had done, which was supported by the remainder of the members.
2012/84
Village Shop Update
Cllr J Hughes said shop had been officially opened on 7th June 2012.  The month of May had produced an excellent turnover of over £30K.  The longer opening hours and better stock control were helping sales and produced a good result.
The Chairman agreed to the following subjects being raised:
· Cllr D Wingrove asked if an acknowledgement of Di Juniper’s good work as Editor of the Parish Newsletter could be sent to her by the Parish Council.










Action: The Clerk
· Cllr M Seymour said Aggregate Industries were prepared to give some boulders to place along the lay-by opposite their entrance and outside Lake 62.  The boulders will restrict HGV’s parking around the lake entrance and the drivers using the hedge as toilet and litter facilities.
· The Chairman reported that he has been invited to attend the Remembrance Ceremony in Grandchamp des Fontaines on 11th November 2012.  This year their village is honouring the six men who are buried there who died when their bomber was shot down 70 years ago.  The Chairman said he would attend  the ceremony and if any member wished to accompany him he would be welcome to do so.
.





The business of the meeting was concluded at 9.45pm.
The next meeting of the Parish Council will be held on Wednesday 11th July 2012, commencing at 7.45pm

Page 2012- 22

